AGREEMENT

BETWEEN

TOWNSHIP OF NORTH BERGEN

HUDSON COUNTY, NEW JERSEY

AND

PBA LOCAL #18 (PBA)

January 1, 2016 through December 31, 2019

Prepared by:

D/C Peter Fasilis 4233 Kennedy Boulevard North Bergen, NJ 07047 (201) 392-2100

Contents

PREAMBLE	1
ARTICLE I	2
UNION RECOGNITION	2
ARTICLE II	3
DEDUCTION FROM SALARY	3
ARTICLE III	4
SCOPE OF AGREEMENT	4
ARTICLE IV	5
UNION ACTIVITIES	5
ARTICLE V	7
WORK DAY, WORK SCHEDULE, MANPOWER AND PATROL CARS	7
ARTICLE VI	9
OVERTIME	9
ARTICLE VII	11
HOLIDAYS	11
ARTICLE VIII	12
VACATIONS AND VACATION PAY	12
ARTICLE IX	
SICK LEAVE AND OTHER BENEFITS	14
ARTICLE X	18
LINE OF DUTY INJURY	18
ARTICLE XI	19
WAGES AND SERVICE DIFFERENTIAL	19
ARTICLE XII	21
LONGEVITY	21
ARTICLE XIII	22
CLOTHING AND WEAPONS ALLOWANCE	22
ARTICLE XIV	
MEDICAL-SURGICAL, MAJOR MEDICAL. EYE GLASS AND DENTAL	23
ARTICLE XV	25
UNIFORMS	25
ARTICLE XVI	26
BEREAVEMENT LEAVE	26
ARTICI F XVII	27

LEAVE OF ABSENCE, MILITARY LEAVE	27
ARTICLE XVIII	28
REPRIMAND, SUSPENSION, DISCHARGE, RESIGNATION OR RETIREMENT	28
ARTICLE XIX	29
MUTUAL AID	29
ARTICLE XX	30
SANITARY FACILITIES	30
ARTICLE XXI	31
RULES AND REGULATIONS & OUTSIDE EMPLOYMENT	31
ARTICLE XXII	32
APPARATUS INSPECTION	32
ARTICLE XXIII	33
INSPECTION OF RECORDS AND COMPLIANCE OF CONTRACTS	33
ARTICLE XXIV	34
COLLEGE INCENTIVE	34
ARTICLE XXV	35
GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE	35
ARTICLE XXVI	38
SAVINGS CLAUSE	38
ARTICLE XXVII	39
MANAGEMENT RIGHTS	39
ARTICLE XXVIII	41
BULLETIN BOARDS	41
ARTICLE XXIX	42
ACTIONS AGAINST POLICE OFFICERS	42
ARTICLE XXX	43
COOPERATION	43
ARTICLE XXXI	44
NON-POLICE DUTIES	44
ARTICLE XXXII	45
PERSONAL DAYS	45
ARTICLE XXXIII	46
EXCHANGE OF DAYS OFF	46
ARTICLE XXXIV	47
POLICE OFFICERS' BILL OF RIGHTS	47
ARTICLE XXXV	49

PATROL DUTY	49
ARTICLE XXXVI	50
EXTRA-DUTY EMPLOYMENT	50
ARTICLE XXXVII	54
NO-STRIKE PLEDGE	54
ARTICLE XXXVIII	55
FULLY BARGAINED AGREEMENT	55
ARTICLE XXXIX	56
SUNSET PROVISION CLAUSE	56
ARTICLE XXXX	57
DURATION OF AGREEMENT	57

PREAMBLE

THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into by and between THE TOWNSHIP OF NORTH BERGEN, a Municipality in the County of Hudson, State of New Jersey, hereinafter referred to as the "EMPLOYER" and POLICEMEN'S BENEVOLENT ASSOCIATION LOCAL 18, AFFILIATED WITH THE NEW JERSEY STATE POLICEMEN'S BENEVOLENT ASSOCIATION (PBA), hereinafter referred to as the "UNION" for the purposes of reaching a mutual understanding, promote harmonious relations, effect good and efficient service, and both parties agree to be bound by all terms and conditions of this Agreement.

ARTICLE I

UNION RECOGNITION

- A. The EMPLOYER hereby recognizes Policemen's Benevolent Association Local 18 as the sole and exclusive negotiating agent for all police officers, excluding superior officers of the rank of Sergeant and higher, of the North Bergen Police Department, and excluding all other ranks, for purposes of collective negotiations, grievance, procedure, and all terms and conditions of employment.
- B. Bargaining unit work shall be performed by bargaining unit employees.

ARTICLE II

DEDUCTION FROM SALARY

- A. The EMPLOYER agrees to deduct from the salaries of its employees subject to this Agreement dues for the UNION. Such deductions shall be made in compliance with Chapter 310, Public Law of 1967, N.J.S.A. 52:14-15.9(e), as amended. Said monies, together with any record of collections, shall be transmitted to the UNION office by the fifteenth (15) of each month following the monthly pay period in which deductions were made.
- B. If during the life of this Agreement there shall be any change in the rate of membership dues, the UNION shall furnish to the EMPLOYER written notice prior to the effective date of such change, and shall furnish to the EMPLOYER new authorizations from its members showing the authorized deduction for each employee.
- C. The UNION will provide the necessary "check-off' authorization form and deliver the signed forms to the appropriate EMPLOYER Official. The UNION shall indemnify, defend and save the EMPLOYER harmless against any and all claims, demands, suits, or other forms of liability that shall arise out of or by reason of action taken by the EMPLOYER in reliance upon the salary deduction authorization cards submitted by the UNION to the EMPLOYER.
- D. The UNION is required under the Agreement to represent all of the employees in the bargaining unit fairly and equally, with regard to whether or not an employee is a member of the UNION. It is, therefore, fair that each employee in the bargaining unit assume his share of the obligation. All non-member employees, who shall so authorize it in writing, shall pay to the UNION, the exclusive bargaining agent for the employees an amount of money equal to that paid by other employees in the bargaining unit who are members of the UNION which shall be limited to an amount of money equal to the UNION'S usual dues.

ARTICLE III

SCOPE OF AGREEMENT

- A. "Employees" shall be defined as all police officers of the North Bergen Police Department,
 excluding superior officers of the rank of Sergeant or higher. "Employer" is the Township of North
 Bergen.
- B. If there is a disagreement between the rules of the Department and this Agreement, the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall prevail.

ARTICLE IV

UNION ACTIVITIES

- A. The EMPLOYER agrees to grant time off, not to exceed one (1) week, to any employee designated by the UNION to attend each PBA State meeting or convention, providing seventy-two (72) hours written notice is given to the Chief of the Department by the UNION. Not more than four (4) employees shall be granted time off at any one time.
- B. A maximum of two (2) officers, who shall be designated by the appropriate officer of the UNION, shall be released from duty when necessary in order to attend the monthly meeting of PBA Local 18 with no loss of regular pay. For purposes of this section only, the State PBA delegate may be construed to be an officer.
- C. Accredited representatives of the UNION may enter the EMPLOYER facilities or premises at reasonable hours for the purpose of observing working conditions or assisting in the adjustment of grievances. When the UNION decides to have its representative enter said EMPLOYER facilities or premises such representative will orally request such permission from the person in charge and permission will not be unreasonably withheld, provided further there shall be no interference with normal operations of the business of the EMPLOYER or normal duties of employees.
- D. During collective negotiations, when negotiation meetings are scheduled during an employee's regular work time, authorized UNION representatives, not to exceed four (4), shall be excused from their normal work duties to participate in such sessions, and shall suffer no loss of regular pay thereby provided no emergency exists or the recall of off-duty employees is not required.
- E. The EMPLOYER agrees that the president of the UNION may go off post on union business, but upon doing so, the president must notify Headquarters and obtain permission from the Desk Officer, which shall not be unreasonably withheld.

- F. The EMPLOYER may permit duly authorized UNION representatives to attend labor relations seminars and other educational programs for job related activities, provide no undue interference with departmental operations is created.
- G. The State delegate shall be granted time off to attend monthly meetings of the State PBA. Any officer of the State PBA, not to exceed (2) two shall, also be granted such time off provided no undue interference with Departmental operations is created thereby.

ARTICLE V

WORK DAY, WORK SCHEDULE, MANPOWER AND PATROL CARS

- A. The present work schedule, i.e., rotating shift cycle, shall continue in full force and effect. There shall be one (1) hour off in each day for lunch or dinner. However, while on mealtime, the employee shall be at all times subject to emergency call. There shall be three (3) shifts or tours of duty, namely 8:00 a.m. to 4:00 p.m., 4:00 p.m. to midnight, and midnight to 8:00 a.m. The EMPLOYER may establish such other permanent bona fide shifts as public safety needs require after advising the UNION.
- B. Members who are assigned to a steady or administrative work schedule shall work an alternating 5-day / 4-day work week.
- C. During all shifts, the Chief or Tour Commander shall allocate personnel to police vehicles based on the needs of the Department.
- D. During all shifts, the Chief or Tour Commander shall allocate personnel to patrol cars depending on the needs of the Department.
- E. No member of the UNION shall be required to utilize a police vehicle that is not in safe operating condition or equipped with safety appliances as prescribed by law. The EMPLOYER shall provide protection cages to marked vehicles where applicable.
- F. All patrol vehicles shall be equipped with proper and adequate equipment necessary for the UNION member to fulfill the duties and responsibilities of the Police Department as specified by Department Policy.
- G. The parties agree that all vacancies and promotions in the Department shall be made by the EMPLOYER in accordance with prevailing Civil Service Commission Laws.

- H. A constant Civil Service Commission list shall be maintained for all ranks to insure prompt filling of all vacancies. At the request of the UNION, the EMPLOYER will request Civil Service Commission to call an examination.
- In the event an employee acting in a higher grade is killed or permanently disabled in the line of duty, he or his designated beneficiary shall receive a pension in the amount equal to the rank he was acting in and the difference, if any, shall be paid by the EMPLOYER.

ARTICLE VI

OVERTIME

A.	Any employee required to work in excess of his regular tour of duty shall be paid at the rate of time
	and one-half in accordance with the following schedule:

- B. Overtime shall be computed on the base salary, college differential, if any, detective differential, if any, service differential, if any, and Longevity, if any, only of the employee.
- C. An employee recalled to duty will be guaranteed a minimum of four (4) hours at the overtime rate.

 The EMPLOYER retains the right to retain the employee for the full call-out period. Call-out pay shall not be applicable to overtime contiguous with the completion of employee's workday.
- D. Whenever an employee is required in the course of his duties to appear in any court or administrative proceeding during his off duty time, he shall receive overtime pay as defined herein. For municipal court appearance or any departmental hearing within the confines of the municipality, the employee shall be paid at the rate of time and one-half for two (2) hours or for all hours worked whichever is greater. For all other court or administrative proceedings, the employee shall be paid for four (4) hours or for all hours worked whichever is greater. For the purpose of computing the number of hours worked, the hours worked shall commence at the time he telephones Police Headquarters from court and end when he telephones from court immediately after testifying. The Desk Officer shall make a blotter entry indicating on-duty and off-duty of officer. This section shall not apply to civil court proceedings where the employee is the

defendant, unless the employee is subpoenaed by the EMPLOYER. Further, this Section shall not apply to any court or administrative proceedings where the employee is the defendant, unless the hearing or proceedings are directly related to complaints against the employee for actions taken in the line of duty. Any officer shall, where possible, schedule return dates for traffic summons on their regularly assigned work dates.

- E. Employees who are the subject to disciplinary action shall not be eligible for overtime under this Article.
- F. There will be no advancing of sick time.

ARTICLE VII

HOLIDAYS

Holiday pay of \$3,400.00 shall be included in each step on the salary guide.

ARTICLE VIII

VACATIONS AND VACATION PAY

- A. Employees retiring or who have retired in good standing with vacation time earned prior to January 1, 1990 will receive payment for any unused vacation days and shall be paid at the employee's rate as of January 1, 1995. Employees may utilize accumulated vacation time earned prior to January 1, 1990 with the Chief of Police's permission if manpower considerations are met, and such approval shall not be unreasonably withheld.
- B. The following vacation is applicable to all employees in the unit hired after January 1, 1986:
 - 1. During first yearTwo Weeks Prorated
 - 2. Completion of (1) year through the completion of two years......2 Weeks

 - 4. From the completion of three (3) years through the
 - 5. More than four (4) years......5 Weeks
- C. All employees shall submit requests for summer vacation by April 15th to the appropriate senior officer. All employees shall submit fall/winter vacation request by September 15th and spring vacations by December 15th.
- D. An employee on sick leave shall not be charged with vacation if the sick leave and vacation coincide provided that the sick leave results from job related injury or illness, including but not limited to heart attacks and hemorrhoids. In the event of an employee's death, all accrued vacation pay due him will be paid to his estate.
- E. Employees shall be permitted to exchange previously submitted and approved vacation time, with men with equal ranks, without prejudice or discrimination.

- F. The vacation period shall be between January 1 and December 31. All employees shall be guaranteed three (3) weeks vacation between on or about May 1st and September 15th and the remaining vacation time may be taken <u>anytime</u>, so long as it is consistent with the requirements of the Department. Vacation leave may commence on <u>any day</u> of the week for officers who work a rotating schedule. Officers on a steady administrative 5/4 -day schedule must begin their vacation leave on Saturday or their first regularly scheduled day off.
- G. In addition to the thirty-five (35) days vacation provided for herein, an employee shall receive an additional vacation day for each five-(5) years of service.
- H. Effective January 1, 1990, the maximum amount of time an employee may carry over for usage in future years is one year's vacation allotment. Employees retiring with vacation earned prior to January 1, 1990 shall be paid at the Employee's rate as of January 1, 1995, inclusive of 1995 wage increase. Employees may utilize vacation time earned prior to January 1, 1990 with the Chief of Police's permission if manpower considerations are met and no overtime is created. Approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. During the last twelve (12) months of service, grandfathered vacation time may only be used in extraordinary circumstances with the permission of the Chief of Police. The Chief shall develop guidelines to use such grandfathered time.
- I. Vacation time shall not be advanced.

ARTICLE IX

SICK LEAVE AND OTHER BENEFITS

- A. All permanent employees or full-time provisional employees shall be permitted to existing sick leave benefits with pay.
- B. Sick leave may be utilized when they are unable to perform their work by reason of personal illness, accident or exposure to contagious disease. Sick leave, in addition to Bereavement leave, may also be utilized for short periods because of death or serious illness in the employee's immediate family as defined in the Civil Service Commission Regulations.
- C. If an employee in the line of duty is incapacitated and unable to work because of an injury, he shall be entitled to injury leave with full pay, less any amounts received from disability insurance during the period in which he is unable to perform his duties as certified by a physician designated by the EMPLOYER. Employees will be required to notify the EMPLOYER if they are receiving disability monies.
- D. An employee who shall be absent on sick leave for four (4) or more consecutive working days shall be required to submit acceptable medical evidence substantiating the illness.
- E. The appointing authority may require proof of illness of an employee on sick leave, whenever such requirement appears reasonable. Abuse of sick leave shall be cause for disciplinary action.
- F. During protracted periods of illness or disability of an employee, the Department Head may require interim reports on the condition of the patient at weekly or bi-weekly periods, from the attending physician and/or the EMPLOYER's medical physician. When under medical care, employees are expected to conform to the instructions of the attending physician if they wish to qualify for salary payment during such period of illness or disability.
- G. No employee shall be allowed to work and endanger the health and well-being of other employees

and if the employee's condition warrants, the employee may be directed to take sick leave. The Department Head may direct the employee to the EMPLOYER'S physician for an opinion as to the eligibility of the employee to be absent from work.

- H. Sick leave with pay shall not be allowed under the following conditions.
 - When the employee, under medical care, fails to carry out orders of the attending physician.
 - When in the opinion of the EMPLOYER'S medical physician, the employee is ill or disabled because of self-imposed contributory causes or actions contrary to the code of conduct.
 - 3. When in the opinion of the EMPLOYER'S medical physician, the disability or illness is not of sufficient severity to justify the employee's absence from duty.
 - 4. When an employee does not report to the EMPLOYER'S physician as ordered by the Department Head.
- I. The recommendation of the EMPLOYER'S medical physician as well as those of the attending physician, as to the justification for the absence from duty on account of disability or illness or of the fitness of the employee to return to duty shall be considered by the Department Head. The Department Head reserves the right in such cases where there is a difference of professional opinion between the EMPLOYER'S physician and the personal physician, to require the employee to submit to an examination by a third doctor.
- J. In charging an employee with sick leave, the smallest unit to be considered is one (1) work day.
- K. If an employee is absent from work for reasons that entitle him to sick leave, the Department Head or his designated representative shall be notified as early as possible, but not later than one hour prior to the start of the scheduled work shift from which he is absent. Failure to so notify the

Department Head or his designated representative may be cause for denial of the use of sick leave for the absence and constitute cause for disciplinary action. An employee who is absent for five (5) consecutive calendar days or more and does not notify the Department Head or some other reasonable representative of the EMPLOYER on any of the first (5) calendar days may be subject to dismissal barring extenuating circumstances.

- L. Habitual absenteeism or tardiness may be cause for discipline up to and including discharge.
- M. Any employee who calls in sick to engage in outside employment shall be subject to disciplinary action.
- N. In cases of reported illness or disability which does not require hospitalization, the employee shall remain at his residence unless authorized in writing by the attending physician and the EMPLOYER'S doctor. Should it become necessary for the employee to visit a doctor or a drug store, he shall notify the Department Head or his designated representative in advance. Absence from his residence without prior notification shall be cause for disciplinary action.
- O. Upon retirement within the meaning of PFRS, excluding deferred retirement, compensation shall be paid to said employee of all ranks for each full day of earned and unused sick leave time computed at one-half the average daily rate of pay received by said employee during the last year of employment in an amount not to exceed seventy-five percent (75%) of maximum patrolman's salary. To calculate monies due if any, the EMPLOYER shall multiply the years of service by 15 and subtract the number of days taken during employee's years of service. If at the time of termination of employment said employee shall have utilized a number of sick days in excess of an average of fifteen (15) days for each year of service, no monies shall be paid.
- P. An employee on leave following submission of retirement papers shall not be permitted to go on sick leave.

- Q. All employees hired after January 1, 1990 shall be entitled to the following sick leave benefits:
 - 0-1 years service, 1 day per month up to 10 days
 - 1-2 years service, 11 days
 - 2-3 years service, 12 days
 - 3-4 years service, 13 days
 - 4-5 years service, 14 days

After 5 years, unlimited sick time up to 1 year

ARTICLE X

LINE OF DUTY INJURY

- A. When an employee is injured in the line of duty, the EMPLOYER agrees to bear the cost of all medical, dental, surgical, therapeutic and pharmaceutical bills.
- B. Any employee hospitalized with line of duty injuries will be provided with semi-private accommodations at the minimum.
- C. An employee injured in the line of duty reserves the right to be treated by a physician and/or surgeon of his own choice whose reasonable fees will be paid by the EMPLOYER, providing the employment of said doctor or panel of doctors is authorized and approved by the EMPLOYER and its Claim Administrator, which authorization shall not be unreasonably withheld.
- D. An employee must report his injury to the Department, whether slight or severe, within twentyfour (24) hours of its occurrence in order to be eligible for benefits. Maximum benefits pursuant to
 statute are one year.
- E. The employee may reasonably be required from time to time to present evidence by a certificate of a physician that he is unable to work.

ARTICLE XI

WAGES AND SERVICE DIFFERENTIAL

Wage rates are inclusive of Holiday Pay.

Employees hired on or before December 31, 2011 shall receive the following salary:

Wages		2016	2017	2018	2019	
Step 1	Start of 1 st year	\$25,500.00	\$26,010.00	\$26,531.00	\$27,062.00	
Step 2	Start of 2 nd year	\$48,689.00	\$49,663.00	\$50,657.00	\$51,671.00	
Step 3	Start of 3 rd year	\$59,342.00	\$60,529.00	\$61,740.00	\$62,975.00	
Step 4	Start of 4 th year	\$69,991.00	\$71,391.00	\$72,819.00	\$74,276.00	
Step 5	Start of 5 th year	\$80,663.00	\$82,277.00	\$83,923.00	\$85,602.00	
Step 6	Start of 6 th year	\$91,316.00	\$93,143.00	\$95,006.00	\$96,907.00	

Employees hired after December 31, 2011 shall receive the following salary:

Wages		2016	2017	2018	2019
Step 1	Start of 1 st year	\$28,050.00	\$28,611.00	\$29,184.00	\$29,768.00
Step 2	Start of 2 nd year	\$39,282.00	\$40,068.00	\$40,870.00	\$41,688.00
Step 3	Start of 3 rd year	\$48,689.00	\$49,663.00	\$50,657.00	\$51,671.00
Step 4	Start of 4 th year	\$59,342.00	\$60,529.00	\$61,740.00	\$62,975.00
Step 5	Start of 5 th year	\$69,991.00	\$71,391.00	\$72,819.00	\$74,276.00
Step 6	Start of 6 th year	\$80,663.00	\$82,277.00	\$83,923.00	\$85,602.00
Step 7	Start of 7 th year	\$91,316.00	\$93,143.00	\$95,006.00	\$96,907.00

- A. With the adoption of a 4-step promotional salary increase schedule, and signing of this agreement, the EMPLOYER agrees to end the practice of requesting salary waivers from UNION members.
- B. The EMPLOYER agrees to provide all employees with a pension, as provided by State Law, pension contributions to be calculated in accordance with this Agreement.

C. All officers hired *prior* to August 5, 1998 shall receive a service differential pursuant to the following schedule:

0-5 years of service	0% of base salary
6-10 years of service	an additional 2% of base salary
11-15 years of service	an additional 4% of base salary
Over 15 years of service	an additional 6% of base salary

- D. Employees hired after August 5, 1998 shall not receive any service differential.
- E. Detectives shall receive an additional \$1000 per year as a detective allowance.

ARTICLE XII

LONGEVITY

- A. The EMPLOYER agrees to pay longevity to all employees covered by this Agreement according to the following scale, said longevity to be paid with the employee's salary. Said longevity shall be included as part of employee's rank salary for pension purposes.
- B. Longevity shall be paid according to the following schedule:

2% after 3 years

4% after 6 years

6% after 9 years

8% after 12 years

10% after 15 years

12% after 20 years

C. All employees hired after March 16, 1994 shall enjoy the following longevity schedule:

0 to 5 years completed service	0%
Completion of 5 years through completion of 10 years	2.0%
Completion of 10 years through completion of 15 years	.4.0%
Completion of 15 years through completion of 20 years	6.0%
Completion of 20 years through completion of 24 years	8.0%
Completion of 24 years	.10.0%

ARTICLE XIII

CLOTHING AND WEAPONS ALLOWANCE

- A. The EMPLOYER agrees to pay all employees covered by this Agreement the amount of \$675.00 for a clothing allowance. Said payments shall be made on or before December 1st of each year. The employee may purchase uniforms from any supplier of said uniforms.
- B. Each employee shall receive a weapons maintenance allowance in the sum of \$425.00 payable no later than August 1st of each year.
- C. Clothing or weapons lost, damaged or destroyed by the negligence of the employee shall be replaced by the employee at his own expense. Clothing damaged during the course of duty shall be replaced at EMPLOYER expense. This does not include jewelry which the officer may be wearing at the time.
- D. Both the first and last year's clothing and weapon's allowance shall be pro-rated. If any employee returns from any sort of leave of absence during the calendar year the clothing and weapon allowance shall be pro-rated.

ARTICLE XIV

MEDICAL-SURGICAL, MAJOR MEDICAL, EYE GLASS AND DENTAL

- A. The EMPLOYER agrees to provide a major medical, dental, prescription, and vision plan at its own expense, except as required under paragraph G. of this Article, to the employees covered by this Agreement and their dependents. The major medical plan includes a catastrophic provision.
- B. Medical, dental, prescription, and vision benefits declaration pages, attached hereto (Appendix A), are hereby incorporated and made part of this Agreement.
- C. All employees hired after 1/1/2008 may only enroll in Direct Access or other managed care plans offered by the EMPLOYER. Employees hired on or before 1/1/2008 may continue to remain enrolled in the Traditional Plan.
- D. The EMPLOYER shall provide the maximum coverage available within New Jersey Blue Cross and Blue Shield (commonly referred to as the Traditional Plan), including Rider J, or its substantial equivalent at its own expense, except as required under paragraph G. of this Article, to all employees enrolled in the *Traditional Plan* and covered by this Agreement and their dependents.
- E. The EMPLOYER agrees to provide medical and hospitalization insurance, prescription, dental and optical to any employee and family who has twenty-five (25) years continuous service with the EMPLOYER and/or retires within the meaning of the police and fire retirement system excluding deferred retirement. If the employee has other health insurance coverage, eligibility for Medicare, the EMPLOYER will pay for a supplemental Medicare policy for the employee and family only.
- F. Retirees shall receive the same level of benefits and coverage types as provided to current active employees of the Township. Supplemental coverage and Medicare coverage shall be substantially similar to the current employee's medical and hospitalization coverage. Annually, the retired employee must submit a form stating he/she has no other benefits. By November 1st of each year,

said form will be mailed to or otherwise delivered to the retirees. Said form is to be returned to the Police Department by November 30th of the year. A list of those retirees who have not submitted said form by November 30th shall be sent to the UNION, which will have 30 days to provide to the EMPLOYER accurate information regarding the retiree's status. Failure to complete said form by December 31st of the year will result in disqualification of the listed retirees from benefits under this provision. Retirees will be required to make all contributions towards the total premiums for medical and hospitalization, prescription, dental and vision coverage as mandated under the Pension and Health Benefit Reforms set forth in Chapter 78 of the Laws of 2011.

G. In accordance with the Pension and Health Benefit Reforms set forth in N.J. Chapter 78, P.L. 2011, all Employees shall contribute towards the total premiums or periodic charges for all health care benefits including medical, prescription, dental and vision. The aforementioned provisions set forth in this Article may also be subject to the terms and conditions of other applicable State and/or Federal Statutes.

ARTICLE XV

UNIFORMS

- A. Except for police officers performing special duties (e.g. narcotics burn, maintenance, range, etc.), the uniform of the day will be worn in the prescribed manner at all times while on duty. The employees, if special circumstances warrant, may be permitted to change into and out of uniforms at headquarters.
- B. UNION members shall also be guided by department policy regarding uniforms.

ARTICLE XVI

BEREAVEMENT LEAVE

- A. In the event of death in the employee's immediate family, the employee shall be granted time off without loss of pay from the day of death or the day of the funeral, but in no event shall said leave exceed four (4) calendar days.
- B. The "immediate family" shall mean only parents, husband, wife, child, stepchild, ward, brother, sister, stepmother, stepfather, guardian and grandchild.
- C. Reasonable verification of the event may be required by the EMPLOYER.
- D. Such bereavement leave is not in addition to any holiday, day off, vacation leave, compensatory time or sick time off falling within the time of bereavement.
- E. An employee may make a request of the Department Head or his designated representative for time off to attend a funeral separate and distinct from bereavement leave. Such request, if granted by the Department Head or his designated representative shall be charged, at the option of the employee, as a vacation day.
- F. Employees shall be granted the day of the funeral off with pay for the death of employee's grandparent, great-grandparent, or employee's immediate uncle or aunt, niece, nephew, mother-in-law, father-in-law, sister-in-law and brother-in-law only. The EMPLOYER shall receive seventy-two (72) hours notice except in cases of emergency.
- G. The EMPLOYER agrees to allow time off without discrimination to any employee who provides a substitute of equal rank with permission of designated employer representative.

ARTICLE XVII

LEAVE OF ABSENCE, MILITARY LEAVE

- A. A leave of absence without pay may be granted to any permanent policeman who has been employed for a period of ninety (90) days. Said leave may not be arbitrarily or unreasonably withheld.
- B. Employees entering the Military or Naval Service, or performing active duty for training shall be granted all of the rights and privileges as are presently provided by State and Federal Law.
- C. Employees called to active duty, other than active duty for training, will be granted eight (8) working days' leave with pay prior to induction.
- D. When the military compensation of any employee is less than his salary, the EMPLOYER shall pay the difference to the employee in monthly installments pursuant to N.J.S.A. 38:23-3.

ARTICLE XVIII

REPRIMAND, SUSPENSION, DISCHARGE, RESIGNATION OR RETIREMENT

- A. Any employee served with a written notice of charges, by which he could be reprimanded, suspended, or discharged shall have the right to be accompanied by any authorized representative(s) of the UNION at the said hearing, not limited to, nor excluding, legal counsel.
- B. The EMPLOYER agrees to pay to any employee who shall resign, retire, or be discharged, all money due him within thirty days immediately following the termination of employment. Said pay shall include pro-rata vacation pay and cash in lieu of compensatory time due.
- C. Minor Disciplinary Actions within the meaning of the Civil Service Commission may proceed to arbitration under Article XXV of this Agreement.

ARTICLE XIX

MUTUAL AID

- A. The EMPLOYER agrees that any employee who is killed or injured in the line of duty while rendering aid to a neighboring community is fully covered by pension and insurance rights as if said injury or death occurred out of an accident arising out of performance of duty within the Township of North Bergen.
- B. The EMPLOYER shall not require employees covered by this Agreement to assist other communities whose police officers are engaged in a job action connected with a labor dispute.

ARTICLE XX

SANITARY FACILITIES

A. All duty stations and the facilities within shall be maintained in good order by the EMPLOYER.

			•		
•					

ARTICLE XXI

RULES AND REGULATIONS & OUTSIDE EMPLOYMENT

- A. The UNION agrees that the EMPLOYER has the right to maintain and enforce a reasonable set of rules and regulations covering the actions of the employees and the operations of the Department.
- B. Officers shall be entitled to engage in any lawful activity and obtain any lawful work while off duty.
- C. No Officer planning to or engaging in any outside employment or activity during their off duty hours shall be permitted to wear the regulation uniform or exhibit the color of his office without permission of the Chief of Police.
- D. All outside employment shall be listed with the Chief of Police. The information provided to the Chief of Police shall include the outside officer's name, address, and the Officer's work schedule.

ARTICLE XXII

APPARATUS INSPECTION

A. All motor vehicle apparatus will comply with State inspection standards for safety. Any vehicle which does not so comply, irrespective of whether it has a current sticker, shall be out of service and not operated by any employee until said vehicle is in compliance.

ARTICLE XXIII

INSPECTION OF RECORDS AND COMPLIANCE OF CONTRACTS

- A. Authorized representatives of the UNION shall, upon appropriate request, have the right to inspect non-confidential employee records of the EMPLOYER at a mutually convenient time and place.
- B. The EMPLOYER agrees that all copies of contracts with police department employees shall be filed with the Commissioner of Public Safety and made available for public inspection, at mutually convenient time.
- C. Each employee shall be entitled to an examination and inspection of his personnel file upon request pursuant to General Order 90-01, except such material which is the subject of a pending investigation.

ARTICLE XXIV

COLLEGE INCENTIVE

Section 1:

A. Employees hired *prior* to January 1, 2000 shall have added to his or her <u>base salary</u> an amount equal to the following percentages for attaining the various degrees in Police Science or Criminal Justice:

Said amounts shall be included in base salary for all purposes. Such payment shall be pro-rated during the first and last years' service.

B. Employees hired *after* January 1, 2000 shall receive a flat dollar incentive according to the following schedule, which shall not be a part of the base salary:

 Associate's Degree
 \$450

 Bachelor's Degree
 \$900

 Master's Degree
 \$1200

 Doctorate Degree
 \$1550

Section 2:

A. Each employee shall receive an educational incentive payment in the sum of \$175.00 per year payable no later than August 1st of each year which shall be pro-rated during the first, last year of service and any leave of absence.

ARTICLE XXV

GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE

A. Purpose

- The purpose of this procedure is to secure, at the lowest possible level, an equitable solution to the problems which may arise affecting the terms and conditions of this
 Agreement and to resolve grievances as soon as possible so as to assure efficiency and promote employees' morale. The parties agree that this procedure shall be kept as informal as may be appropriate.
- Nothing contained herein shall be construed as limiting the right of any employee having a
 grievance to discuss the matter informally with the Chief of the Department and having the
 grievance adjusted without the intervention of the PBA.

B. <u>Definition</u>

The term "grievance" as used herein means any controversy arising over the
interpretation, application or adherence to the terms and conditions of this Agreement
and/or administrative policies and may be raised by any employee, the PBA or the
EMPLOYER. Only alleged violations of this agreement may proceed to arbitration.

C. Steps of the Grievance Procedure

1. The following constitutes the sole and exclusive method for resolving grievances between the parties covered by this Agreement and shall be followed in its entirety unless any step is waived by mutual consent:

Step 1

a. An aggrieved employee or the PBA shall institute action under the provisions
 hereof within ten (10) days of the occurrence of the grievance, and an earnest

effort shall be made to settle the differences between the aggrieved employee and the Department Head or his designee, for the purpose of resolving the matter informally. Failure to institute action within said ten (10) days shall be deemed to constitute an abandonment of the grievance.

b. The Department Head or his designee shall render a decision within ten(10) days after receipt of the grievance.

Step 2

- a. In the event the grievance is not settled through Step 1, the same shall be reduced to writing by the PBA, and filed with the Director of Public Safety, or his designee, within seven (7) days following the determination by the Chief of the Department.
- The Director of Public Safety, or his designee, shall render a decision in writing
 within seven (7) days from the receipt of the grievance.

<u>Step 3</u>

- a. Within fourteen (14) calendar days of the Director of Public Safety or his designee's decision, the UNION may apply to the State Board of Mediation for binding arbitration. The selection of an Arbitrator and the arbitration shall be in accordance with the rules and procedures of the Board.
- b. Simultaneously with the application to the Board, the UNION will send notice to the employer of its application for arbitration.
 - The decision of the arbitrator shall be in writing and shall include the reasons for such decision.
 - ii. The decision of the Arbitrator shall be binding upon the employer and the UNION employee.

- iii. The parties direct the Arbitrator to decide, as a preliminary question, whether he has jurisdiction to hear and decide the matter in dispute.
- iv. The costs for the services of the arbitrator shall be borne equally by the EMPLOYER and the UNION.
- v. Either party reserves the right to require that only one issue at a time be submitted to arbitration.
- vi. Should the grievant pursue his Civil Service Commission remedies, the matter will be withdrawn with prejudice from arbitration.
- vii. The arbitrator shall be bound by the provisions of the agreement and by the Constitution and laws of the State of New Jersey and shall be restricted to the application of the facts presented to him involving the grievance. The arbitrator shall not have the authority to add to, modify, detract from or alter in any way the provisions of this Agreement or any amendment or supplement thereto.

ARTICLE XXVI

SAVINGS CLAUSE

Should any part of or any provision herein contained be rendered or declared invalid by reason of any existing or subsequently enacted legislation, or any decree of a court of competent jurisdiction, such invalidation of such part or portion of this Agreement shall not invalidate the remaining portion thereof and the parties will immediately renegotiate said invalid clause so as to bring the same within legal limits.

ARTICLE XXVII

MANAGEMENT RIGHTS

- A. The EMPLOYER hereby retains and reserves unto itself, without limitation, all powers, rights, authority, duties and responsibilities conferred upon and vested in it prior to the signing of this Agreement by the laws and constitution of the State of New Jersey and of the United States, including, but without limiting the generality of the foregoing the following rights:
 - 1. Except to the extent where there is contained in the Agreement express and specific provisions to the contrary, the EMPLOYER may promulgate such policies, general orders, and rules and regulations governing the conduct of North Bergen Police Department Personnel and its public safety and law enforcement functions as it deems necessary. The rules and regulations governing the Department shall be adhered to by all UNION members and employees covered by this Agreement.
 - 2. The executive management and administrative control of the EMPLOYER Government and its properties and facilities and activities of its employees utilizing personnel methods and means of the most appropriate and efficient manner possible as may from time to time be determined by the EMPLOYER.
 - 3. To make rules of procedure and conduct, subject to N.J.S.A. 13A:5-1, et seq., to use improved methods and equipment, as well as duties, to decide the number of employees needed for any particular time and to be in sole charge of the quality and quantity of the work required.
 - 4. To hire all employees, whether permanent, temporary, or seasonal, to promote, transfer, assign or retain employees in positions within the EMPLOYER subject to the Civil Service Commission and law.

- 5. To suspend, demote, discharge or take any other appropriate disciplinary actions against any employee for good and just cause according to law.
- 6. To lay off employees in the event of lack of funds or under conditions where continuation of such work would be inefficient and non-productive.
- B. In the exercise of the foregoing powers, rights, authority, duties and responsibilities of the EMPLOYER, and the use of judgment and discretion in connection therewith, shall be limited only by the specific and express terms of the Agreement and then only to the extent such specific and express terms hereof are in conformance with the constitution and law of New Jersey and of the United States subject to law.
- C. Nothing contained herein shall be construed to deny or restrict the EMPLOYER or the UNION of its rights, responsibilities, and authority under R.S. 40A:1-1, et seq. or any national, state or local laws.

ARTICLE XXVIII

BULLETIN BOARDS

- A. The EMPLOYER shall permit the UNION reasonable use of bulletin boards and other police facilities for the posting of notices concerning UNION business and activities and concerning matters dealing with the welfare of the employees.
- B. No matter may be posted by an employee without receiving express permission of the officially designated UNION Representative.

ARTICLE XXIX

ACTIONS AGAINST POLICE OFFICERS

A. Whenever any action is brought against any employee covered by this Agreement for any act or omission, arising out of or incidental to the performance of his duty, on or off his regular tour of duty, the EMPLOYER shall defray the costs of defending such action. The employee may select his own counsel and the EMPLOYER shall reimburse the employee for reasonable attorneys' fees not to exceed the Township's approved rates. The EMPLOYER may select co-counsel through the Municipal Excess Liability (MEL) Joint Insurance Fund (JIF). Such attorney's hourly fees shall not exceed the EMPLOYER'S attorney rate provided same is reasonable. In the case of a civil action, the EMPLOYER shall pay any adverse judgment, save harmless, and protect such employee from any financial loss resulting therefrom. The employee shall submit to the Commissioner of the Department, through the Chief's office, the name of the attorney he selects and the estimated fees, for his approval, such approval may not be unreasonably withheld.

ARTICLE XXX

COOPERATION

A. The UNION and the EMPLOYER agree that they will cooperate in eliminating waste, improving training and efficiency, combating absenteeism and strengthening goodwill between the EMPLOYER and the employees, the UNION and the public. The UNION agrees to support the EMPLOYER'S effort to assure a normal day's work on the part of the employees.

ARTICLE XXXI

NON-POLICE DUTIES

A. The EMPLOYER and the UNION acknowledge that a police officer's primary responsibility is to perform duties and that his energies should to the fullest extent be utilized to this end.

ARTICLE XXXII

PERSONAL DAYS

- A. Each employee shall be entitled to five (5) personal days so long as the employee requests such leave at least seventy-two (72) hours in advance.
- B. All employees hired after January 1, 1990 shall have the following personal days schedule:
 - 0-1 years services.....1 personal day
 - 1-2 years service.....2 personal days
 - 2-3 years service......3 personal days
 - 3-4 years service.....4 personal days
 - 4 plus years service.....5 personal days
- C. Personal days shall not be advanced and may not accumulate from year to year except those days accumulated prior to August 5, 1998.

ARTICLE XXXIII

EXCHANGE OF DAYS OFF

A designated superior officer (Division Commander, Deputy Chief or Chief) of the Police

Department may grant any member's request to exchange hours, duty or days off with officers of equal rank or duty assignment for a minimum of eight (8) hours. Such request must be made seventy-two (72) hours in advance. Such request shall be granted on a uniform basis and standard rules and regulations shall apply to all employees who make this request. Such requests shall not be unreasonably or arbitrarily denied.

ARTICLE XXXIV

POLICE OFFICERS' BILL OF RIGHTS

- A. Members of the force hold a unique status as public officers in that the nature of their office and employment involves the exercise of a portion of the police powers of the municipality.
- B. The wide-ranging powers and duties given to the Department and its members involve them in all manners of contacts and relationships with the public. Out of these contacts may come questions concerning the actions of the members of the police department. These questions may require investigation by superior officers. In an effort to ensure that these investigations are conducted in a manner which is conducive to good order and discipline, the following rules are hereby adopted:
 - The interrogation of a member of the police department shall be at a reasonable hour, preferably when the member is on duty, but where the seriousness of the complaint merits immediate action, such action may be taken.
 - 2. The member shall be informed of the nature of the investigation before interrogation commences. Sufficient information to reasonably apprize him of the allegations should be provided, including but not limited to the date, time, place, and nature of the charges. If it is known that the member is being interrogated as a witness only he should be so informed at the initial contact.
 - The questioning shall be reasonable in length with reasonable respites allowed for personal necessities, meals, telephone calls and rest periods. No off the record questions shall be permitted.
 - 4. The member shall not be subjected to any offensive language, nor shall he be threatened with transfer, dismissal or other disciplinary punishment. No promise of reward shall be made as an inducement to answering questions.

- 5. If a member of this police department is under arrest or is likely to be, that is, if he is a suspect or the target of a criminal investigation, he shall be given his rights pursuant to the current decisions of the United States Supreme Court.
- 6. Members may, at their request, consult with counsel or their UNION representative prior to his being questioned concerning a violation of the Rules and Regulations. Such request for consultation shall not serve to unreasonably delay the investigation of the department.
- 7. Police Officers shall not be entitled to any additional or less protection than any other citizen.

ARTICLE XXXV

PATROL DUTY

Section 1:

A. No one other than regular police officers shall perform traditional police duties on a regular basis.

Section 2:

A. The EMPLOYER agrees that all non-regular employed personnel working in a police capacity for the EMPLOYER shall be clearly distinguishable by uniform and vehicle such as auxiliary police and special police.

Section 3:

A. The EMPLOYER agrees that only regular police personnel be assigned to patrol duty in regular marked police vehicles. Any violation of this section will be deemed a violation of the contract and the employee may refuse to be assigned with non-regular personnel for his own safety and the safety of others without fear of department charges and accept another assignment not be deemed a punished assignment by the President or Vice President of the UNION.

ARTICLE XXXVI

EXTRA-DUTY EMPLOYMENT

A. General

- 1. Extra-Duty Employment shall be defined as any employment or assignment which the police department is not obligated or expected to provide, or does not normally provide as part of its regular plan of police service; performed by an officer of the police department for a person or entity who has entered into a formal contract with the township for the performance of such services and where such services are conditioned upon the actual or potential use of law enforcement powers by the police department employee.
- 2. Extra-Duty Employment includes, but is not limited to, traffic control required by street opening and construction permits, sporting events and public gatherings, security at public and Board of Education buildings and grounds, and all other security and traffic control functions for both public and private entities.
- 3. UNION members engaged in Extra-Duty employment shall be considered to be *on-duty* for all intents and purposes.
- 4. The EMPLOYER shall allow officers to engage in extra-duty employment on a voluntary basis.
- 5. Extra-duty employment assignments will only be permitted when the entity requesting the police service has executed a formal agreement with the Township of North Bergen.
- Extra duty employment shall be established by ordinance. <u>North Bergen Township</u>
 Ordinance #269-15, attached hereto (Appendix B), is hereby incorporated and made part of this Agreement.

B. Financial

- The EMPLOYER agrees to maintain a special trust fund to manage Extra-Duty employment escrows and payments.
- All UNION members shall be paid at the rates set forth via Ordinance #269-15 for Extra-Duty Police Services including prevailing amendments.
- 3. Members shall be compensated for Extra-Duty employment performed on the next regular pay date after the submission of a pay slip that has been approved by the Police Chief, or his designee, <u>and</u> properly authorized by the person or entity who requested the Extra-Duty police services.
- The EMPLOYER is not responsible for lost paperwork, incomplete submissions, or documents that were submitted late or past the payroll deadline.
- 5. The EMPLOYER shall not be financially liable for Extra-Duty employment performed erroneously or without proper authorization.

C. Authority

- In order to insure that Extra-Duty employment assignments are administrated and conducted in accordance with all applicable laws, ordinances, written directives and prevailing opinions the UNION acknowledges that the Chief of Police, or his designee, shall act as administrator of the Extra-Duty Employment assignments.
- The assignment of officers and equipment (e.g. vehicles) for extra-duty police services shall be subject to the sole discretion of the Chief of Police, or his designee.
- 3. The Chief of Police, or his designee shall have the authority to:
 - a. Order any police officer engaged in Extra-Duty police services to respond to an

emergency situation.

- Terminate any Extra-Duty assignment when it creates an unacceptable risk to the health, safety and welfare of the officer or public.
- c. Relieve from duty any officer engaged in Extra-Duty employment who is unfit for duty, in violation of any rule or regulation, or who fails to perform his Extra-Duty assignment satisfactorily.
- d. Relieve from duty and officer who performs any task not associated with police work that might demean the image of the North Bergen Police Department, EMPLOYER, or diminish the respect of the profession.
- The UNION shall also be guided by North Bergen Police Department General
 Order 13-16 (and any revisions) regarding Extra-Duty Employment.

D. Good and Welfare Fund

- The EMPLOYER and UNION mutually agree to withhold a Good and Welfare fee of \$4 per hour, per member from the hourly rate. This fee is in addition to the hourly administration fee. Vehicle and other fees collected are exempt from Good and Welfare and do not apply.
- The UNION agrees that under no circumstances or capacity shall Good and Welfare funds
 be used for collective bargaining grievances or labor actions against the Township of North
 Bergen or its agents.
- 3. The UNION agrees to establish a separate financial account and record for Good and Welfare funds. At no time should Good and Welfare funds be comingled with the general account since the standard on their acquisition and use is unique to each.
- Upon request, the UNION shall grant the EMPLOYER access to the UNION's Good and Welfare financial records to ensure compliance with the use-restriction set forth in this Article.
- 5. The UNION recognizes that failure to comply with said use-restrictions shall be deemed a

- violation of this contract Agreement.
- The UNION acknowledges that it shall be responsible for the reimbursement of misappropriated funds including any legal and administrative fees that may occur as a result.
- 7. The UNION understands that the misappropriation of Good and Welfare funds may also be a violation of State and/or Federal law.

ARTICLE XXXVII

NO-STRIKE PLEDGE

- A. The UNION covenants and agrees that during the term of this Agreement neither the UNION nor any person acting in its behalf will cause or authorize any strike (i.e., the concerted failure to report for duty, or stoppage of work), work stoppage, walkout or other concerted refusal to perform mandated police duties. The UNION agrees that such action would constitute a material breach of this Agreement.
- B. In the event of any such strike or walkout, any employee who engages in such activity shall be subject to disciplinary action subject however to the application of the Grievance Procedure contained in this Agreement.
- C. The UNION will actively discourage any strike, work stoppage or walkout by police officers.
- D. Nothing contained in this Agreement shall be construed to limit or restrict the EMPLOYER or the UNION in its rights to seek and obtain such judicial relief as may be entitled to have in law or in equity or both the injunction or damages in the event of such breach of either party.

ARTICLE XXXVIII

FULLY BARGAINED AGREEMENT

A. This Agreement represents and incorporates the complete and final understanding and settlement by the parties of all bargainable issues which were or could have been the subject of negotiations.

During the term of this Agreement, neither party will be required to negotiate with respect to any such matter, whether or not covered by this Agreement, and whether or not within the knowledge or contemplation of either or both parties at the time they negotiated or signed this Agreement.

ARTICLE XXXIX

SUNSET PROVISION CLAUSE

- A. An act concerning police and fire interest arbitration was approved by the Senate and General Assembly of the State of New Jersey on June 24, 2014 amending P.L.1977, chapter 85 and P.L.2010, chapter 105.
- B. This act shall take effect immediately and shall be retroactive to April 2, 2014.
- C. This act which originally took effect January 1, 2011 shall apply only to collective negotiations between a public employer and the exclusive representative of a public police department or public fire department that relate to negotiated agreements expiring on that effective date or any date thereafter until or on December 31, 2017, whereupon, after December 31, 2017, the provisions of section 2 of P.L.2010, c.105 (C.34:13A-16.7) shall become inoperative for all parties except those whose collective negotiations agreements expired prior to or on December 31, 2017 but for whom a final settlement has not been reached.
- D. In the event the Amendments to N.J.S.A. 34:13A-16. et seq., as set forth in P.L. 2010, Chapter 105, commonly referred to as the "Rocket Docket Arbitrati on Law" are not extended past December 31, 2017 (revised Sunset Date) in its current form, either party will have the ability to reopen the contract for the remaining term or newly agreed to term upon thirty (30) days prior written notice.

ARTICLE XXXX

DURATION OF AGREEMENT

Section 1:

This Agreement shall become effective as of January 1, 2016 and shall expire December 31, 2019.

Both parties agree to commence negotiations for the year of 2019 in accordance with then applicable rules of the Public Employment Relations Commission.

Section 2:

In the event negotiations are not completed for a new agreement by the expiration date of this

Agreement, the parties agree that this Agreement shall remain in full force and effect until such time as the

new agreement is reached.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have set their hands and seals at NORTH BERGEN, NEW JERSEY on this _______, 2016.

POLICEMEN'S BENEVOLENT ASSOCIATION, LOCAL 18 (PBA), AFFILIATED WITH THE NEW JERSEY STATE P.B.A. TOWNSHIP OF NORTH BERGEN, HUDSON COUNTY, NEW JERSEY

By: Gregory Costanza

Christopher Pianese

WITNESS:

WITNESS:

Liz Gonzalez

APPENDIX A





Township of North Bergen

FINAL / CONFIRMED

Effective 1/1/2015

Making Healthcare Mork-

Horizon Blue Cross Blue Shield of New Jersey

CROTTP #85944

AA/RG

ma a at market	COMPREHENSIVE	BENEFITS	BENEFIT/DESCRIPTION	
PLAN TYPE	MEDICAL			
		Deductible	\$100/\$200	
Traditional		Coinsurance	80%	
		Catastrophic limit	\$2,000/\$4,000	
		Dependent up to:	26th birthday	
PLAN TYPE	COMPREHENSIVE MEDICAL	BENEFITS	BENEFIT/DESCRIPTION	
		in-net ov copay	\$5.00 pcp/specialist	
		ER Copay	\$50.00	
		In-Patient copay	None	
Direct Access		in-network deductible	none	
\$5 copay		in-network coinsurance	100%	
4p.g		in- network & out of network MOOP*	\$1,000/\$2,000	
		out-net deductible	\$200/\$400	
		out-net coinsurance	80%	
		Dependent up to:	26th birthday	
PLAN TYPE	COMPREHENSIVE MEDICAL	BENEFITS	BENEFIT/DESCRIPTION	
		in-net ov copay	\$20.00 pcp/\$40.00 specialist	
		Er Copay	\$109.00	
Advantage EPO		In-Patient Copay	\$250 per day up to 5 days	
\$20/\$40 copay		Out Patient Surgery Copay	\$200,00	
		Ambulatory Surgical Center Copay	\$100.00	
		in-net deductible	none	
		in-net coinsurance	100%	
		In-network MOOP	\$2,500/\$5,000	
		Dependent up to:	26th birthday ·	
PLAN TYPE	COMPREHENSIVE MEDICAL	BENEFITS	BENEFIT/DESCRIPTION	
		in-net ov copay	\$20.00 pcp/\$40.00 specialist \$50.00	
		ER Copay	<u> </u>	
POS		In-Patient copay	none	
\$20/\$40 copay		in-net deductible	none	
D. 1		In-net coinsurance In- network & out of network MOOP*	\$5,000/\$10,000	
Primary Care Dr. must be selected		out-net deductible	\$2,000/\$4,000	
must no selected		out-net deductible out-net coinsurance	60%	
		Dependent up to:	26th birthday	
PLAN TYPE	DENTAL	BENEFITS	BENEFIT/DESCRIPTION	
3 144 14 A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A A	er 441 042M	coinsurance	100%/50%	
Dental	ŀ	Deductible	none	
anaged Dental Choice	,	BPM	none	
rimary Care Dentist		Ortho Max	dependent children 50%	
must be selected		Dependent up to:	End-of-month of 23rd birthday	
PLAN TYPE	DENTAL	BENEFITS	BENEFIT/DESCRIPTION	
4 (1711) 5 4 6 13			100%/80%/50%	
Dental			\$25 single / \$75 family	
Dental Option Plan	-		\$1,250	
ochan opnon i ian	<u> </u>		\$800 per lifetime	
			End-of-month of 23rd birthday	
PLAN TYPE	PRESCRIPTION	BENEFITS	BENEFIT/DESCRIPTION	
A AMERICA A SE SO		Rx copay Retail	\$5/\$10/\$15	
		Rx copay MO	\$5/\$10/\$15	
		Retail day supply	1 copay for each 30 day supply	
		RX MOOP**	\$1,320.00/\$2,640.00	
RX	Li .		26th birthday	

Printed 11/2/2015

Employee Termination: End of the month Medical self-insured 1/1/2015

DAVIS VISION REFRAMED

Township of North Bergen Vision Plan

Effective 1/1/2015 Dependent covered up to end of month of 26th birthday

Benefit	Frequency Once every -	In-network Copay	1 7 4 4 4 4 4 5 7 7 4 7 4 7 4 7 4 7 4 7 4	In-network Goverage
Eye Examination	12 months	\$0	Covered in full. Includes dilation when professionally Indicated.	
Spectacle Lenses	12 months	80	Clear plastic lenses in any single vision, bifocal, trifocal or lenticular prescription. Covered in full, (See below for additional lens options and coatings.)	
Framo	12 monihs	\$ 0	Covered in Full Frames: OR, Frame Allowance: OR, Visionworks Frame Allowance:	Any Fashion or Designer level frame from Davis Vision's Collection? (retail value, up to \$160). \$130 toward any frame from provider plus 20% off any balance. No copay requited. \$180 allowance plus 20% off any balance toward any frame from a Visionworks family of store locations.? No copay required.
Contact Lons Evaluation, Fitting & Follow Up Care	12 months	\$0	Dayls Vision Collection Contacts: Non Collection Standard Contacts: Non Collection Specialty Contacts ^a :	Covered in full. 15% discount 15% discount
Contact Lenses (in lieu of eyeglasses)	12 months	\$0	Covered in Full Confacts; Planned Replacement OR Disposable OR, Contact Lens Allowance: OR, Visually Required Contacts:	From Davis Vision's Collection', up to: Two boxes/multi-packs' Four boxes/multi-packs' \$130 ellowance toward any contacts from provider's supply plus 15% off belance. No copey required. Covered in full with prior approval. 'Number of contact tens boxes may vary based on manufacturer's packaging

Significant savings on optional frames, lens types and coatings!	Member Price
Davis Vision Collection Frames: Fashion Designer Premier	\$0 \$0 \$25
Tinting of Plastic Lenses	\$0
Oversize Lenses	\$0
Scratch-Resistant Coating	\$0
Ultraviolet Coating	\$0
Anti-Reflective Coating: Standard Premium Ultra	
Polycarbonate Lenses	\$0
High-Index Lenses	\$55
Progressive Lenses: Standard Premium Ultra\$5	0 \$90 \$140
Polarized Lenses	\$75
Photochromic Lenses (i.e. Transitions*, etc.y*	\$65
Scratch Protection Plan: Single Vision Multifocal Lenses	\$20 \$40

- ¹⁷ The Davis Vision Collection is available at most participating independent provider locations. Collection is subject to change. Collection is inclusive of selectionic and multilocal contacts.
- Including, but not fimited to toric, multifocal and gas permeable contact lenses.
- Allowance is available at these Visionworks analy of store locations. Davis Vision, Empire Vision Centers, Total Vision Caro, EyeMesters, Cambridge Eye Doctors, Vision World, Dr. Bizer's Vision World, Eye Dr. Dr. Bizer's Valu Vision, Doctor's Valu Vision, How Eyes, Visionworks.
- *Transitions* is a registered trademark of Fransitions Optical Inc

Please note: Your provider reserves the right to not dispense materials until all applicable member costs, fees and cogayments have been collected. Contact lenses: Routine eye examinations do not include professional services for contact lense evaluations. Any applicable trees [above the evaluation and fitting allowance] are the responsibility of the member. If contact lenses are selected and fitted, they may not be exchanged for eyeglasses. Progressive lenses: if you are unable to adapt to progressive addition lenses you have purchased, conventional bifocals will be supplied at no additional cost; however, your copayment is nonrefundable. May not be combined with other discourts or offers. Please be advised these lens options and copayments apply to in-network benefits.

OUT-OF-NETWORK BENEFITS AVAILABLE

APPENDIX B

#269-15

TOWNSHIP OF NORTH BERGEN HUDSON COUNTY, NEW JERSEY

SUPERSEDING ORDINANCE CONSOLIDATING AND AMENDING PRIOR ORDINANCES CONCERNING EXTRA-DUTY POLICE OFFICERS WORK ASSIGNMENTS

BE IT ORDAINED by the Board of Commissioners of the Township of North Bergen, County of Hudson, State of New Jersey, as follows:

Section I. Findings

- A. N.J.S.A. 40A:14-118 provides that the governing body of any municipality may, by ordinance, create and establish a police force and provide for the regulation and control thereof; provide for the adoption and promulgation of rules and regulations of the police force; provide for the appointment of officers and personnel as shall be deemed necessary; and prescribe their powers functions and duties.
- B. There are numerous occasions where retail businesses in the Township of North Bergen ("Township"), contractors performing work in the Township, and other private persons or businesses require police-related services, including police vehicles, for added security, traffic control, and other public safety reasons.
- C. The Attorney General of the State of New Jersey and the Department of Community Affairs, Division of Local Government Services, have determined that members of a municipal police department may, during their off-duty hours, engage in police-related activities for private persons or entities. Pursuant to the laws of the State of New Jersey, a municipality must agree to implement a system whereby the extra-duty assignment of police officers is arranged through a contract between the municipality and the private person or entity.
- D. The contract between the municipality and a private person or entity must include a plan whereby the compensation for extra-duty police related services is paid to the municipality, and that said payment is placed in a special trust fund to be established by the municipality, and that the proceeds of said fund will be disbursed through the finance office to the individual police officers performing such services.
- E. It is in the best interest of the Township citizens, including the business community, to establish a procedure for extra-duty police assignments which will allow for the greater protection of the citizens of the Township.
- F. The Township has adopted various ordinances in the past, and there is a need to consolidate these Ordinances, update and simplify the fees the Township charges to such persons requiring Extra-Duty Police Services, and reset the allocation of the fees as between the municipality and the police officers.

Section II. Definitions

A. "Administrative Fee" shall be that portion of the fees paid by private persons or entities for Extra-Duty Police Services, which shall be allocated to the Township to off-set the costs associated with administering the Extra-Duty Police Services.

- B. "Good and Welfare Allocation" shall mean that portion of the fees paid by private persons or entities for Extra-Duty Police Services, which, if provided for in the controlling collective negotiated agreement, will be allocated to officer's bargaining agent to be used for union activities, as specified herein.
- C. For the purposes of this Ordinance, "Holiday" shall be defined as one of the following:
 - New Year's Day;
 - Dr. Martin Luther King, Jr.'s Birthday (the third Monday in January);
 - 3. Presidents Day (the third Monday in February);
 - Memorial Day;
 - 5. Independence Day;
 - 6. Labor Day;
 - 7. Columbus Day;
 - 8. Veterans Day;
 - 9. Thanksgiving Day;
 - Day after Thanksgiving;
 - 11. Christmas Eve;
 - 12. Christmas Day.
- D. "Emergency Extra-Duty Police Service" shall mean the provision of Extra-Duty Police Services where the request for such services is received less than 8 hours before the need for such services. Emergency Extra-Duty Police Services shall last no longer than 8 hours before they are deemed to no longer be emergent in nature.
- E. "Extra-Duty Police Services" shall mean police providing security, traffic control, or other police-related functions for private business or persons where the actual or potential use of law enforcement powers may be required. Extra-Duty Police Services may be provided at the request of a private business or person; or the Chief of Police may mandate, for reasons of public safety, that a private business or person secure Extra-Duty Police Services.
- F. "Weekends" shall mean both Saturday and Sunday.

Sections III. Assignments

- A. The Chief of Police, or his designee, shall be responsible for the assignment of all Extra-Duty Police Services. The Chief of Police shall be authorized to designate other members of the police department as needed to assist him in the assignment and processing of Extra-Duty Police Services. The procedure for assignment of Extra-Duty Police Services shall be as follows:
 - The Chief of Police, or his designee, shall create and maintain a list whereby police officers may volunteer for Extra-Duty Police Services; and
 - 2. The Chief of Police, or his designee, shall assign all Extra-Duty Police Services from the aforementioned list of officers desiring said assignment; said assignments to be made on a rotating basis as the assignment becomes available.

Section IV. Contracts with Private Persons/Entities.

Any private person or entity desiring to retain Extra-Duty Police Services shall be required to enter into a written contract with the Township. Said contract shall include, but not limited to, the nature of duties to be performed, the

location of said duties, the number of officers and equipment involved, the date and hours of service, the rate of payment for services and equipment. The contract will also provide for payment in advance by the private person or entity for services to be performed.

Section V. Payment Procedures

The person or entity requesting Extra-Duty Police Services shall pay the Township in advance, based on the Chief of Police's, or his designee's discretion, up to two hundred percent (200%) of the estimated amount due for the requested services, except in the case of Emergency Extra-Duty Police Services, where the Chief of Police, or his designee, in their discretion, may delay such advance payment. The Township shall deposit the monies collected from said private person or entities, earmarked for payment to the officers performing Extra-Duty Police Services, into a special trust fund to be established to receive such monies. All members of the police department shall be paid for Extra-Duty Police Services performed on the next regular pay date after submission of a pay slip approved by the Police Chief or his designee and properly authorized by the private person or entity. All police officers shall be paid at the rates set forth herein for Extra-Duty Police Services.

Section VI. Insurance & Indemnification

- A. Each private person or entity that shall retain officers for Extra-Duty Police Services pursuant to this Ordinance shall be responsible for maintaining their own insurance coverage. Said insurance coverage shall include, but not be limited to, to the following insurance coverages and amounts:
 - 1. Commercial general liability coverage with a minimum of \$1,000,000 per occurrence, \$2,000,000 products/completed operations, and \$2,000,000 in the aggregate.
 - Comprehensive automobile liability insurance coverage with \$1,000,000 combined single limit.
 - Workers' compensation with limits in accordance with New Jersey Statutes.
 - 4. Employers liability insurance limits shall be bodily injury by accident of \$1,000,000 each accident, bodily injury by disease \$1,000,000 each employee, bodily injury by disease \$1,000,000 policy limit.
- B. Proof of said insurance coverage shall be provided to the Township prior to the assignment of any police officers for Extra-Duty Police Services.
- C. The Township shall be named as an additional insured on the general liability and automobile liability polices referenced Section VI.A.
- D. Any private person or entity requesting the Extra-Duty Police Services shall defend and indemnify the Township and hold, it, its officials, officers, agents, representatives and employees, harmless from any and all losses, claims, liabilities or damages of any kind, including attorney's fees and costs, for personal injury, damage to property or other liabilities of any kind resulting from, or arising out of the Extra-Duty Police Services.

Section VII. Availability of Officers & Equipment; Police Emergencies

- A. The assignment of officers and equipment for Extra-Duty Police Services shall be subject to the Chief of Police's, or his designee's, sole discretion. The assignment of such services shall also be subject to availability considering the Police Department's limited resources.
- B. The Chief of Police, or his designee, shall have the authority to order any police officer, engaged in Extra-Duty Police Services, to respond to an emergency situation. The Chief of Police, or his designee, shall also have the right to order any Extra-Duty Police Service assignment to be terminated whenever said assignment creates an unacceptable risk to the health, safety and welfare of the officer and/or the citizens of the Township. In the event a police officer is assigned to an emergency situation, the Police Chief, or his designee, shall make note of said emergency situation, as well as the time said officer was removed from said Extra-Duty Police Service assignment. In any situation where an Extra-Duty police officer is called to an emergency situation, said private person or entity shall not be responsible for the payment of fees related to the time the officer was called away from the Extra-Duty Police Service assignment.

Section VIII. Extra-Duty Police Service Rates

- A. The following rates shall apply for Extra-Duty Police Services:
 - General Rate: Except as set forth in Sections VIII.A.2 & IX.B, the Extra-Duty Police Services Rate shall be \$81.00 per hour, per police officer.
 - 2. Emergency, Holiday, Overtime and Weekend Rate: The rate for Extra-Duty Police Services for Emergency Extra-Duty Police Services, Extra-Duty Police Services performed on a Holiday or Weekend, and overtime shall be \$106.00 per hour, per police officer.
 - Rate for Police Vehicles: The rate for the use of a police vehicle (marked or unmarked) shall be \$100 per vehicle, for up to a maximum eight (8) hours. Use of the vehicle beyond eight (8) hours shall be a rate of \$10 per hour thereafter. The determination of whether a police vehicle is required shall be in the sole discretion of the Chief of Police, or his designee.

Section IX. Minimum Hours & Overtime

- A. For the purposes of this Ordinance, "overtime" shall mean where an individual police officer works in excess of eight (8) hours on a single Extra-Duty Police Service assignment within a twenty-four (24) hour period.
- B. The minimum number of hours for any Extra-Duty Police Service assignment shall be four (4) hours. In the event the person or entity requesting the Extra-Duty Police Services utilizes such services for less than four (4) hours, it will be required to render payment to the Township as if each officer utilized had worked a full four (4) hours.
- C. Where the person or entity requesting Extra-Duty Police Services anticipates that such services will be required for twelve (12) or more hours, advises the Township in advance of the anticipated duration, and where staffing levels permit, the Township will make arrangements for a new shift of officers every eight (8) hours.

D. Where the person or entity requesting Extra-Duty Police Services has need of unanticipated coverage in excess of eight (8) hours, the officers on duty shall remain on duty and shall be compensated at the overtime rate for all hours worked in excess of eight (8) hours. Under no circumstance, however, shall an individual officer work more than sixteen (16) hours in a twenty-four (24) hour period.

Section X. Allocation of Fee

- A. The fees collected by the Township shall be allocated as follows:
 - The Township will keep seven (\$7) dollars per hour, per police officer assigned as the Administration Fee;
 - The remaining hourly rate shall be payable to the police officer that worked the assignment.
 - 3. If agreed to between the Township and the controlling collective negotiation agent for the officer, the Township will withhold a Good and Welfare Allocation of an additional four (\$4) dollars per hour, per police officer, from the amount payable to the officer under Section X.A.2, and transfer said Good and Welfare Allocation to the officer's collective negotiations agent.
 - 4. The Township will keep the entire fee related to the use of the police vehicles for Extra-Duty Police Services.

Section XI. Limitation on Union's Use of the Good and Welfare Allocation

- A. The collective negotiation agents' use of Good and Welfare funds allocated to it under this Ordinance shall be limited solely to the following uses:
 - Establishment of a scholarship program for graduates of North Bergen High School;
 - 2. Funding union involvement in Township sponsored events or functions;
 - 3. Offsetting the cost for union related training expenses (i.e. Convention);
 - Putting on fundraising events for union purposes;
 - 5. Making donations to charitable organizations; and
 - 6. Making donations directly to a union member, or their family, in the event of a personal hardship or emergency.
- B. The Township maintains the right to demand inspection of the union's financial records to ensure compliance with the use-restrictions set forth in Section XI.A.

Section XII. Exempt Private Establishments

- A. The following businesses, having previously negotiated long term contracts for Extra-Duty Police Services, will continue to pay the following rates:
 - 1. The ShopRite of Columbia Park Grocery Store, located at 3147 Kennedy Blvd., North Bergen, New Jersey 07047, shall compensate the Township at a rate of \$53 per hour per officer for Extra-Duty Police Services. The Township will keep five (\$5) dollars per hour, per police officer assigned as the

Administration Fee. There shall be no Good and Welfare Allocation as to The ShopRite of Columbia Park Grocery Store;

- 2. The State of New Jersey, Motor Vehicle Commission, located at 8901 Park Plaza, North Bergen, New Jersey 07047, shall compensate the Township at a rate of \$40 per hour per officer for Extra-Duty Police Services. There shall be no Administration Fee or Good and Welfare Allocation as to the State of New Jersey, Motor Vehicle Commission;
- 3. The North Bergen School District, with offices located at 7317 Kennedy Blvd., North Bergen, New Jersey 07047, shall compensate the Township at a rate of \$48 per hour per officer for Extra-Duty Police Services. There shall be no Administration Fee or Good and Welfare Allocation as to the North Bergen School District;
- 4. Subject to the discretion of the Chief of Police and Township Administrator, the Township may charge a rate of \$48 per hour per officer, with no Administration Fee or Good and Welfare Allocation, for Extra-Duty Police Services provided to other public bodies.

Section XIII. Repealer

All ordinances or parts of ordinances inconsistent with this Ordinance are hereby repealed as to the inconsistency thereof.

Section XIV. Severability

If any article, section, sub-section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance is for any reason deemed to be unconstitutional or invalid by any court of competent jurisdiction, such decision shall not affect the remaining portion of this Ordinance.

Section XV. Effective Date

This Ordinance shall take effect upon adoption and publication as required by law.

Introduced: October 21, 2015

Published: October 27 & November 17, 2015

Adopted: November 10, 2015

Attest: Erin Barillas Township Clerk

Comm.	Cabrera	YES
Comm.	Marenco	YES
Comm.	Pascual	YES
	dent Sacco	YES